
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982) 
 
 

A R Ward 
Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee 

Civic Offices  Leigh Road  
Eastleigh 
Hampshire  SO50 9YN 
Telephone:  023 8068 8000 
Fax No:   023 8068 8122  

 

 
DATE: 1 February 2011 

 
 

Thursday, 10 February 2011 
2pm Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

AGENDA 
 

Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place. 

 
 SPECIAL NOTE:  
 As some of you may know, Tony Balcombe has not been very well recently and is 

looking to stand down from his role as Chairman at the June meeting. 
 
As a result of this, Dave Lees, Southampton Airport Managing Director has 
prepared a proposal for the process of appointing a New Chairman, along with a 
role profile. These are attached and will be discussed at the Consultative 
Committee meeting in February. 
 
We will naturally want to recognise Tony’s service and achievements and thank 
him personally at the June meeting.  

  
1. Apologies for absence     
 
2. Minutes of meeting Thursday, 14 October 2010 of Airport Consultative Committee  

(Pages 1 - 4) 
 
3. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 5 - 26) 
 
4. Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement    (Pages 27 - 32) 
 
5. Proposal for the Appointment of a new Chair of Southampton Airport Consultative 

Committee    (Pages 33 - 38) 
 
6. Technical Working Group feedback    (Pages 39 - 42) 
 
7. Updates on developments at the Airport - presentation by Steve Thurston     
 
8. Southampton Airport Passenger Profile - presentation by Neil Garwood     
 
9. Date and time of next meeting - 2pm 9 June 2011     
 
 



 



1 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 14 October 2010  (2:00 pm – 3:00 pm) 

 
Mr T Balcombe  (Chairman) 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson OBE  (Vice-Chair) 
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary) 
 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor David Airey Eastleigh Borough Council 
Councillor Eleanor Bell Winchester City COuncil 
Mrs Susan Blatchford Southampton City Council 
Phil Dominey South West Trains 
Mrs M Finch Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
Mr A Jones Co-optee 
Mr R Robinson Southampton City Council 
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association 
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access 
Councillor Anne Winstanley MA 
(Cantab) 

Eastleigh Borough Council 

Dave Lees Southampton International Airport 
 
Deputies Present: 
 
Denise Barlow Southampton and Fareham Chamber 

of Commerce 
Mrs J Smith Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Mark Beeston Environmental Health 
Mr Rob Crichton Southampton City Council 
Mr Mark Gibb Southampton International Airport Ltd
Mike Glen Southampton International Airport 
Karin James Eastleigh Borough Council 
Marie Pennington Southampton International Airport 
Stewart Smith Southampton International Airport 
Tony Wright Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
Apologies: 
 
Jimmy Chestnutt Southampton and Fareham Chamber 

of Commerce 
Sarah Davis Tourism South East 
Roger Hage Eastern Airways 
Andy Kenyon  
Ms L M Luland Winchester & District Trades Union 

Council 
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council 
Robin Tice Winchester City Council and 

(Winchester Air Group) 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

Mrs Jan Halliday Southampton International Airport 
Councillor Edward Osmond Southampton City Council 
Councillor John Slade Southampton City Council 
Steve Brine MP  
John Denham MP  
Chris Huhne MP  
Alan Whitehead MP  

 
1. CHAIRMAN'S COMMENTS 

 
At the opening of the meeting the Chairman congratulated Dave Lees on his 
appointment as Managing Director of the Airport.   
 
The Chairman also welcomed two visitors from Southampton Airport; Mike 
Glen (from the Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit) and Marie Pennington 
(Airside Operations Manager).  
 
The Chairman further advised that in the absence of Jan Halliday items 4 and 
5 of the agenda (Preparations for the 2012 Olympics, and Cruise Packs) were 
to be deferred to the next meeting in February.  Although it was confirmed 
both these items were likely to be covered at the forthcoming Airport 
Stakeholders Conference, being held at the University Sports Ground at 2pm 
on 19 November, to  which all committee members were invited.    
 

2. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of 10 June 2010 be signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record.   
 

3. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
Dave Lees presented his report previously circulated to members with the 
agenda.  He then proceeded to answer questions arising from the report.   
 
Geoff Wilkinson commented that the bollard in the footway near the stations 
still posed a problem to the visually impaired.  Mr Lees agreed to investigate 
the problem.   
 
Councillor Eleanor Bell asked whether the current ‘bonfire of QUANGO’s’ was 
likely to have any impact on the Airport, and also whether the recent report on 
BAA’s ownership of airports would affect Southampton.   
 
Mr Lees felt there was no immediate affect foreseen from the abolition of 
various QUANGO’s.  The result of the recent competition appeal on BAA had 
been seen as disappointing however it was felt likely that a further appeal 
would be lodged.   
 
Denise Barlow gave a brief overview of the changes that had taken place 
within the Chamber of Commerce recently. The Hampshire Chamber had 
been formed by the phased merger of North Hampshire Chamber of 
Commerce, Portsmouth & South East Hampshire Chamber of Commerce and 
Southampton & Fareham Chamber of Commerce. It was hoped that the new 
County Chamber would bring enhanced services, a wider network and a more 

2



3 

influential voice.  The Hampshire Chamber would be retaining their 5 local 
offices in Basingstoke, Fleet, Havant, Southampton and Winchester as 
remaining embedded in our local business communities was felt to be of key 
importance. 
 

4. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT - TONY 
WRIGHT, EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
The Committee noted the report by the Head of Regeneration and Planning 
Policy at Eastleigh Borough Council which summarised the statistics of 
operational activity at Southampton Airport for the period May to August 2010 
provided by BAA Southampton in accordance with the Flying Controls 
Agreement between the owners of the Airport and the Borough Council. 
 

5. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK - MINUTES OF THE LAST 
MEETING 
 
Mark Gibb outlined that the minutes of the Technical Working Group had been 
appended to the agenda for this meeting as agreed previously, and identified 
the current key areas of focus: 
 
The review of complaints is always made one month in advance of the 
Consultative Committee and it was hoped that it is now presented in a more 
user friendly format, an example was to show where complaints had been 
found to be justified. 
 
Instrument approach procedures - in 2013 the removal of a navigation beacon 
run by the CAA would necessitate a change in procedures for approach from 
that area.  These changes it was felt would be beneficial to central 
Southampton.  
 
With regard to noise modelling to the north, Winchester Air Group had 
requested this be pushed back to 4 nautical miles, however this was felt to be 
difficult as this it would result in aircraft turning over central Winchester whilst 
benefiting only a small number of properties.   
 
It was acknowledged that the implementation of Multilateration was taking 
longer than anticipated but only one further connection was required at 
Twyford and then more accurate tracking would be available to include height 
and track keeping.   
 

6. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting is to be held on Thursday 10 February 2011 at 2pm.  
 
Tony Balcombe announced his intention to stand down at the next AGM in 
June 2011 after 41 years service to the Committee.  Dave Lees thanked Tony 
for his dedication and stated his intention to take this as an opportunity to 
reconsider the scope of the role of Committee Chair and to circulate this in 
advance of the next meeting.   
 
M4263 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHAMPTON AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Managing Director’s Report 

February 2011 
 

1. Passenger statistics – September to December 2011 
 
Southampton Airport welcomed 550,925 passengers between September and December 2010 
(inclusive), which is -4.9% less than the same months in 2009.  In 2010, Southampton Airport 
welcomed 1,734, 434 passengers, which is -3.2% on 2009.  The majority of months experienced 
passenger numbers which were broadly equal to or more than the same month in 2009, with the 
exception of January, April and December due to volcanic ash and snow disruption. 
 
 
Total Passenger Numbers at Southampton Airport in 2010 
 

 
 
 

 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Jan 95,001 105,227 118,866 122,594 
Feb 114,890 108,536 135,658 127,224 
Mar 142,473 135,312 154,330 146,389 
Apr 121,278 150,447 173,721 158,793 
May 159,700 163,889 187,221 175,111 
Jun 178,900 172,533 187,274 184,402 
Jul 187,757 190,453 192,179 195,722 
Aug 183,500 185,281 192,347 204,359 
Sept 174,570 174,501 182,847 190,407 
Oct 156,754 155,188 165,763 179,068 
Nov 127,019 131,251 134,684 149,197 
Dec 92,582 118,645 126,148 133,312 

TOTAL 1,734, 434 1,791,263 1,951,038 1,966,578 
% change -3.2% -8.2% - 0.8% 2.8% 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

5



2. Total Aircraft Movements 
 
Total Aircraft Movements include; Passenger and Cargo flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, 
General Aviation, Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights.  
 
The aircraft movements at Southampton Airport have decreased by 1.72% from September to 
December 2010, when compared to the same time last year. 
 
 

2,400

2,800

3,200

3,600

4,000

4,400

4,800

Sept Oct Nov Dec

2010

2009

 
 
 
Total Aircraft Movements 
 

  
Sept 

 
Oct 

 
Nov 

 
Dec 

 
Total 

 
% change 

 
 

2010 
 

 
4,432 

 
4,059 

 
3,350 

 
2,661 

 
14,502 

 
-1.72 

 
2009 

 

 
4,287 

 
3,897 

 
3,476 

 
3,096 

 
14,756 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



3) Total Air Transport Movements 
 
Total Air Transport Movements include; scheduled and non-scheduled passenger movements.  
 
These movements at Southampton Airport from September to December 2010 have decreased 
by 1%. 

 
 

2,000

2,400

2,800

3,200

3,600

4,000

Sept Oct Nov Dec

2010

2009

 
 
 
 
Total Air Transport Movements 
 

  
Sept 

 
Oct 

 
Nov 

 
Dec 

 
Total 

 
% change 

 
 

2010 
 

 
3,902 

 
3,697 

 
3,028 

 
2,248 

 
12,875 

 
-1.0 

 
2009 

 

 
3,712 

 
3,463 

 
3,095 

 
2,736 

 
13,006 

 

 
 
 
 

7



4. Airlines & Routes 
 
Southampton Airport now offers services to 48 destinations with 15 airline and tour operator 
partners.  Airlines include: Air France, Aurigny Air Services, Blue Islands, Eastern Airways, Flybe 
and Skybus.  Tour operators include: Airtours, Esprit Ski, Direct Holidays, First Choice, Inghams 
Holidays, Ski Total, Thomas Cook, Thomson and Canterbury Travel.   
 
Flybe – Three New Routes 
Flybe has announced three new routes from Southampton to regional France.  The routes will 
operate this summer to Beziers, Pau and Clermont-Ferrand.  This announcement will mean 
Southampton Airport is the UK number one gateway to France with 14 destinations.  Stansted 
Airport is second place with 10 routes. 
 
Thomas Cook – New Operator & New Routes 
Thomas Cook, a new operator to Southampton Airport, will be starting operations this summer.  
The tour operator announced the start of a new service from Southampton to Majorca running 
every Saturday between May and September. In addition, the tour operator has announced a 
second new service (and brand new route from Southampton) to Menorca, running on Sundays 
throughout this summer.  Holidays are on sale with Thomas Cook, Airtours and Direct Holidays. 
 
Thomson & First Choice – Increased Capacity 
Thomson and First Choice have changed the aircraft used for their summer flights to Majorca.  
The new aircraft will be an A320, meaning additional seats will be available on each flight. 
 
Eastern Airways – Increased Capacity (Aberdeen), & New Fare System (Leeds) 
Eastern Airways is increasing flights between Southampton and Aberdeen from 3 flights a day to 
4.  The additional flights begin in February 2011 and are ideal for business links between the 
north and the south. 
 
Eastern Airways is offering a new fare for flights from Southampton to Leeds Bradford from £65* 
one way including taxes. A flexi fare is also available from £140 one way including taxes, 
allowing changes to flights with no extra charge.  
 
 
5. Airport Developments 
 
World Duty Free 
The World Duty Free shop located in the Departure Lounge is having a complete re-fit in 2011 at 
a cost of £1.5 million.  The shop will increase in size by around 25%, allowing for more product 
ranges and greater choice.  In addition, the area after security searching last summer and aims 
to be completed in early 2011. 
 
Breeze Priority Services 
Southampton Airport has launched a new series of services for passengers to provide an even 
easier and faster airport experience.  The first launched in 2010, called Priority Security, where 
passengers can opt to upgrade by purchasing priority access to the security search area through 
a dedicated entrance at a cost of £5 per person (reduced rates available for pre-booking). 
 
Looking ahead, plans have been developed for a new Priority Business Lounge providing a quiet 
area for passengers, as well as Priority Parking later in 2011. 
 
Meeting Room Facilities 
Southampton Airport now has a new meeting room facility located in the terminal building, called 
The Spitfire Meeting Room.  This can be used pre or post flight, or for day to day meeting needs 
from £30.  The room can hold up to 20 people and includes the latest technology such as a 
SMART Board and free WiFi access.  Bookings and enquiries can be made by emailing 
lynn_johns@baa.com. 
 

8



 
6. Management & Staff 
 
Breeze Through Awards (Monthly) – September – December 2010 
Southampton Airports recognition scheme, The Breeze Through Awards, recognises outstanding 
staff.  Staff can nominate their own team, another team or individual using a nomination form, 
and with support from the relevant manager.  Monthly winners receive a trophy, and have their 
case study displayed across the airport.   
 
In September, Patsy Holmes (Servisair) won the award for going above and beyond to help a 
passenger with missing luggage. The bags arrived in Southampton on the next flight and Patsy 
personally ensured the bags were promptly delivered, so the passenger had the appropriate 
clothing for their evening engagements. The passenger said that Patsy's attitude was exemplary. 
 
In October, Anita Bergier (Amey) won the award for consistently helping passengers with 
enquiries in the terminal.  Her nominator said 'She always delivers excellent customer service to 
both external and internal customers and I would like her to be recognised for her efforts'.  
 
In November, Lucie Sillence (Flybe) ensured the safety and well-being of two passengers when 
her aircraft had to divert elsewhere. On board was an unaccompanied minor and Lucie 
accompanied them on the coach back to Southampton, waiting with them until their parents 
picked them up. In Southampton Lucie learnt that an elderly passenger was unable to get home 
so Lucie volunteered to take the passenger home in her own car.  
 
In December, Martin Ratcliffe (Facilities Manager) and Jenny Mullins (Commercial Team) won 
the award for their work to help passengers during the snow. Martin suggested helping stranded 
people trying to get to Europe on the Eurostar to promote the airport’s pre-Christmas flight 
availability. The pair travelled to St Pancras 1 hour later, speaking with hundreds of people.  
Martin was also interviewed by CNN News further promoting Southampton Airport worldwide.   
 
 
Staff Recognition Awards – Southampton Airport ‘Oscars’ 
Over 1,200 people work at Southampton Airport for around 30 different companies, to provide 
passengers with a seamless airport experience.  This year, for the first time ever, Southampton 
Airport held it’s very own version of the Oscars, to recognise and celebrate staff who go the extra 
mile for customers, who help to continuously improve the airport, and those who doing fantastic 
work volunteering in the local community. 
 
Breeze Through Awards 2010 
In 2010, 87 nominations were received from passengers and staff and the 2010 champions are 
as follows: 
 
Special Contribution Award: Debbie Rigney (Marketing & Communications) 
Debbie played an active role in so many parts of the business in 2010, but was pivotal in the 
airport’s response to passengers during the volcanic ash disruption.  She single handily dealt 
with hundreds of media enquiries and ensured that the website was up to date, so that our 
passengers knew exactly what was going on.  
 
Bronze Award Winner: Dave Doherty (Security) 
Dave demonstrated great care and compassion by personally posting home an item of 
sentimental value for one of our passengers, on his day off.  
 
Silver Award Winner: Patsy Holmes (Servisair) 
Patsy went out of her way to reunite a lady with her evening dress for a formal event, after her 
luggage missed the flight to Southampton. 
 
Gold Award Winner: Joel Green (TTT Moneycorp) 

9



Joel used his initiative to ensure extremely high levels of customer service. He made a high 
speed dash to Gatwick Airport to collect currency for a customer which was not stocked at 
Southampton Airport in time for the passenger’s flight departure. 
 
 
Continuous Improvement Awards 2010 
In 2010, staff made 164 suggestions of ways to streamline processes, generate income, remove 
waste as well as, enhancing safety and improve the passenger experience. The 2010 champions 
are as follows: 
 
Bronze Award Winner: Stephen Vears (Engineering) 
One example of Stephen’s many energy saving suggestions was replacing battery power with 
solar power on our road safety signs.  In doing so he improved reliability of the signage lighting; 
removed the need for battery replacement or recharging; and saved money. 
 
Silver Award Winner: Stephen Alexander (Fire) 
Stephen ensured that First Aid Training is now provided in-house and developed a programme to 
sell the training to outside companies, as part of our Fire Training Courses.   
 
Gold Award Winner: Stewart Smith (Environment) 
Stewart’s idea was to offer our security patrol services to Southwest Trains at the Southampton 
Airport (Parkway) Station, adjacent to the airport, which resulted in extra income. 
 
iVolunteer Awards 2010 
The I-Volunteer Awards is a special award scheme designed by BAA Communities Trust (BAA’s 
own charity) to celebrate and reward the many volunteering and fundraising achievements of 
Southampton Airport staff in their local community. The national awards were first launched in 
2004 by the Trust. The winners in 2010 include;  
 
Best Volunteering Individual Award: Steve Longley (Engineering) 
Prize: Steve received a donation of £2,000 towards his chosen community project. 
Steve is the Chairman of the Bitterne Manor Community Association and has been doing the role 
for over 6 years. He is responsible for the strategic and regulatory works of running a community 
centre and has also co-ordinated the fundraising of over £3,000, meaning major renovation could 
take place. 
 
Best Volunteering Team Award: Debbie Rigney (Marketing & Communications) and team 
Prize: The team received a donation of £2,000 towards their chosen community project. 
The airport has a strategic partnership with Bitterne Park School which was developed in 2004 
and is now held up as a best practice nationally. The partnership includes around 20 different 
initiatives each year such as a real live case studies, work experience placements with full 
interview process, a School Governor (Debbie), Enterprise Days supported by the BAA 
Communities Trust, joint fundraising, national teaching resources (DVDs and showcasing 
conferences), Careers Evenings, media studies resources (i.e. centenary of flight films), public 
performance opportunities, and staff work-shadowing. The partnership is managed on a daily 
basis by Debbie Rigney, but the 20 initiatives are made possible with the help of staff across the 
airport.  
 
Best Fundraising Individual Award (Runners Up): James Dajlid & Steve Bonser (Fire Service) 
Prize: Both winners received a donation of £1,000 for their chosen charity. 
The first runner up ran the London Marathon 2010 to raise money for The British Heart 
Foundation. He completed the run wearing full fire service breathing apparatus! His first training 
session was at 5am in the snow, and he also featured in The Times in his Fire gear. 
 
The second “runner up” also ran the London Marathon in 2010 to raise money for the Anthony 
Nolan Trust. At 3.5 miles he broke a bone in his foot but continued to complete the marathon 
(fully aware of what he’d done!) in 4 hours 5 minutes.  In August 2010 he also completed the 
Three Peaks Challenge in just 21 hours. 

10



 
Best Fundraising Individual Award: Paul Abbott (Fire Service) 
Prize: Paul received a donation of £2,000 towards his chosen local charity. 
Paul is very active in the local community, most recently he… 

• Climbed Kilimanjaro in Feb 2010 raising £2,500 for the Fire Fighters Charity. 
• Took part in the Three Peaks Challenge in June 2010. The 2009 team he led won the 

Gold Award. He did this whilst recovering from a broken hip at the time. 
• Travelled to New York in September 2010 to run the Tunnel to Towers 5k for the Fire 

Fighters Charity again raising another £1,500. 
 
Best Fundraising Team Award (Runner Up): Marie Pennington and team 
Prize: The team received a donation of £1,000 to go to their chosen charity. 
As part of the airport’s centenary celebrations a staff committee organised a staff party. This was 
held in the local community at the airport’s partnership school, Bitterne Park School. The team 
organised various fundraising activities raising £448.60 for Sophie’s Appeal and the Flying 
Scholarships for the disabled, which was then match-funded by the Trust. 
 
Best Fundraising Team Award: Dave Watson (Security) and team 
Prize: The team received a donation of £2,000 towards their chosen charity. 
In September’s 2009, 14 airport staff joined a team of 60 to climb Snowdon for Sophie’s Appeal. 
The team got on a coach at 4am, took 8 hours to get there, climbed the mountain and returned to 
the bottom by 7pm. They also got Simon Carr from the Daily Echo to climb with them to raise the 
profile of the charity. £1723 was raised and then match-funded by the Trust. 
 
Outstanding Contribution to the Community Award: Mike Barringer (Airside Operations) 
Prize: Mike received a donation of £2,500 towards his chosen charity. 
Mike set up his own charity (The Sophie Barringer Trust) following the diagnosis and loss of his 
daughter to Wilms Disease (Cancer of the kidney). Since then over £250,000 has been raised to 
help sick children and their families. Today, Mike is responsible for the charity website 
(www.sophiesappeal.org), and helps organising vital fundraising events. He also leads the way 
with negotiations with hospitals, holiday providers and medical scientists in deciding how funds 
are invested for maximum benefit. One example is Sophie’s Place at the Royal County Hospital 
in Winchester. The children’s assessment centre helps 400 children a month that weren’t 
previously seen and was fully designed and funded by the Trust. The response from patients and 
staff has been so overwhelming that the Trust has been asked to lead with advice and partial 
funding of the transformation of the entire Northbrook Ward. This will be the biggest project 
undertaken by the charity yet.  
 
 
 
7. Vortex 
There was one reported occurrence of vortex damage in Townhill Park in November 2010. All 
repairs were completed to the house holders satisfaction. 
 
 
 
8. Noise Action Plan 
Southampton Airports Noise Action Plan has been submitted to DEFRA/DfT and we are currently 
awaiting approval.  
 
 

11



9. Community 
 
Bitterne Park School 
Southampton Airport has renewed its support for Bitterne Park School’s enterprise initiatives. 
There are 3 whole school days benefitting all of the 1,500 students. Each day is themed, with 
the first focusing on the aviation industry.  In addition the airport is supporting the ‘Young 
Enterprise’ initiatives. 
 
This year’s work experience activities has also commenced with student letters of application 
and a full interview process.  Three students will be joining the airport team in March 2011. 
  
Spitfire 75th Anniversary 
The 75th Anniversary of the first flight of the Spitfire from Southampton Airport is on 5th March 
2011 and plans are currently being developed. 
 
Community & Stakeholder Conference 2010 
On 19th November 2010, Southampton Airport held its latest Community & Stakeholder 
Conference at the Southampton University Sports Grounds.  Delegates from a wide range of 
organisations, including councillors, council officers, business organisations, resident 
associations and regional bodies attended. 
 
The conference is one of the principal ways we communicate with our stakeholders, providing an 
update on our activities, outlining future plans, answering questions and listening to the views of 
local people.  Speakers included; 

• Dave Lees, Managing Director of Southampton Airport 
• Sara Randall Johnson, General Manager for PR & Public Affairs at Flybe 
• Paul Sabin, Managing Director of Blue Islands 
• Jan Halliday, Director of Marketing & Communications at Southampton Airport 
• Stewart Smith, Environment & Surface Access Manager at Southampton Airport 

 
The next conference will be held in the autumn at the University Sports Grounds opposite 
Southampton Airport. 
 
 
10. Other Airport News 
 
Southampton Airport Careers Fair 
Southampton Airport held its first ever Careers Fair in January to offer details of forthcoming jobs 
which will be available throughout 2011, which will total more than 100 permanent and seasonal 
roles.  The jobs available will include airport security, ground handling (i.e. check-in and baggage 
handling), retail and customer service roles.  Visitors were able to meet with staff to understand 
more about jobs and the skills required.  Recruitment contact details for the largest employers at 
Southampton Airport were also provided, so that people know how and where to apply for jobs. 
 
The event was promoted via the airport website and through local media one week beforehand, 
and resulted in over 5,000 people attending to enquire about the 100 roles.  The CV’s and 
contact details are being shared across the 30 airport companies to match people with the right 
skills to the roles that become available this year. 
 
Minister of State for Transport visits Southampton Airport 
The Minister of State for Transport, Theresa Villiers, visited Southampton Airport in January to 
officially name a Flybe aircraft.  The aircraft was named ‘GoSkills and City & Guilds’ to recognise 
Flybe’s commitment to training and education. 
 
Twitter 
Southampton Airport has its own Twitter profile used to provide the latest news, offers and 
updates.  The service has proved invaluable during the recent snow with the number of followers 
doubling (now 2,000 followers in total).  Passengers were able to ask details regarding the airport 

12



and their flights, and receive regular updates from the airport.  To follow the airport, go to 
www.twitter.com/sou_airport. 
 
Outer Catchment Campaign 
Southampton Airport will be launching a new campaign to raise awareness of the airport in 
regional areas.  This will target people living within easy reach of the airport, but who currently do 
not consider using Southampton Airport. 
 
Award Nominations 
Southampton Airport has been nominated for three top awards in recent months.  The airport 
was runner-up in the British Travel Awards, which was voted for by passengers online.  In 
January (at the time of writing this report) the airport has been short-listed for the ‘Best UK Airport 
Award’ at the Business Travel Awards, and also the ‘Top Airport Award’ with Wanderlust 
Magazine.

13



 
 

SUMMARY AND NOTES TO SUPPORT STATISTICS 
 
 
Noise Complaints 
During September to December, the comparison between years 2008/2009/2010 is as follows: 

 
2010   2009   2008       
   

Sept  26  38  40 
Oct  3  25  20 
Nov  5  9  13 
Dec  3  6  15 
Total  37  78  88    
        

This was a 53% decrease in the number of complaints received in the same months in 2009. 
 
Complaints by Household 
The total number of complaining households for the period September to December 2010 is as follows:  

  
2010   2009  2008   

      28    45    38 
     
There has been a 38% decrease in the number of complaining households compared to 2009. 
 
General 
The total number of complaints received during the four month period September to December 2010 was 37, 
and these complaints were registered by a total of 28 households.  8 complaints received during this period 
were not related to Southampton Airport (22%). 
 
Location of Complaints 
Residents of Southampton recorded a total of 14 complaints which is equal to 38% of complaints between 
September and December 2010. Residents of Bitterne Park recorded 6 complaints (16%) and Eastleigh 
residents recorded 4 complaints (11%). 
 
Southampton residents were mainly concerned about noise and routing. Some of these complaints can be 
attributed to the Police aircraft which attracted 5 comments in September 2010. 
 
Bitterne Park residents mainly commented on aircraft noise and out of hours movements. Both of these 
movements were as a result of knock-on weather delays.  
 
Eastleigh residents were concerned about noise and routings due to an off track aircraft in September 2010. 
After an investigation by the Noise and Flight Evaluation Team, it was found that the aircraft was instructed to 
cancel the noise preferred routing due to the avoidance of thunderstorms to the north of the airport. 
 
2010 Summary 
In 2010, there were a total of 320 complaints from 161 households. 29 complaints were unrelated to 
Southampton Airport (9%).  One complainant in Dibden Purlieu reported 30 complaints relating to noise and 
routing.  These complaints represent 9.3% of all complaints in 2010. Overall complaints increased slightly by 
1.91% in 2010, however the number of complaining households fell significantly by 13.44%.

14



 
 
 
 
Community Feedback and Aircraft Movements 
 
 
 

 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



EBC Flying Control Statistics

Runway Use (All Movements) - Appendix 6a

2010
Sep Oct Nov Dec

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 752 1011 808 811

Arr Runway 20 1492 1017 879 529
  

To/From the South

Dep Runway 20 1465 1020 866 519

Arr Runway 02 723 1011 797 802

    
Total Movements 4432 4059 3350 2661

   
   

Runway Use (Air Transport Movements) - Appendix 6b

Sep Oct Nov Dec
To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 653 923 730 699

Arr Runway 20 1322 923 802 419

To/From the South

Dep Runway 20 1300 927 785 442

Arr Runway 02 627 924 711 688

Totals Movements 3902 3697 3028 2248
    

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



EBC Flying Control Statistics
Arrivals & Departures from the same runway direction by main types
of commercial aircraft - APPENDIX 6c.

To/From the North Sep Oct Nov Dec

ATR 42 & 72 72 60 3 3
BAe 146 Series 5 4 0 4

Boeing 737Series 3 0 0 2
British Aerospace Jetstream 31 158 157 149 125
British Aerospace Jetstream 41 85 70 77 64

Canadair Regional Jet 0 0 0 0
Dash 8 Series 1273 1233 1055 718

Embraer RJ135 3 3 2 7
Embraer RJ145 Amazon 0 0 0 0

Embraer RJ195 242 207 170 163
Fairchild Dornier Do.328 1 1 0 2

Mk III Trislander 112 94 65 74
Saab 2000 23 23 22 11

Total 1977 1852 1543 1174

To/From the South Sep Oct Nov Dec

ATR 42 & 72 64 62 3 5
BAe 146 Series 9 4 0 3

Boeing 737 Series 3 0 0 4
British Aerospace Jetstream 31 160 163 165 127
British Aerospace Jetstream 41 87 68 80 53

Canadair Regional Jet 0 0 0 0
Dash 8 Series 1214 1199 993 714

Embraer RJ135 3 3 2 7
Embraer RJ145 Amazon 0 0 0 0

Embraer RJ195 231 198 151 152
Fairchild Dornier Do.328 1 1 0 2

Mk III Trislander 138 134 97 92
Saab 2000 23 23 20 9

Total 1933 1855 1511 1169

Runway use by non commercial/military aircraft - APPENDIX 6d

To/From the North Sep Oct Nov Dec

0 0 0 0

To/From the South Sep Oct Nov Dec

0 0 0 0

C130 (Lockheed Hercules)

C130 (Lockheed Hercules)

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



Noise Statistics Review 2010 

January – December 2010 

Number of Complaints 

Month 2010 2009 2008 
January 5 18 78 
February 48 18 38 

March 12 18 26 
April 18 13 50 
May 69 24 77 
June 80 36 50 
July 27 57 47 

August 24 49 50 
September 26 40 40 

October 3 26 20 
November 5 9 13 
December 3 6 15 

Total 320 314 504 
 

In comparison to 2009, we have seen a 1.9% increase in the number of complaints 
recorded.  

One complainant in Dibden Purlieu recorded a total of 30 complaints which equates to 9.3%. 
It is interesting to note that without these figures, we would have seen a 7.3% reduction in 
complaints recorded throughout 2010.  

During May and June we saw temperatures rise by 2.5 degrees above average. The 
complaints recorded during these two months are responsible for 46% of the total complaints 
logged during 2010. 

In October, the Noise and Flight Evaluation unit introduced an email based initiative that 
aims to inform local residents about any incidences that could cause aircraft to follow an 
unusual path into the airport. This would include informing residents to the North of ILS 
maintenance etc. An email was sent out at the beginning of November informing residents of 
an ILS outage on 4 November. These events usually attract 10+ complaints and as a result, 
we recorded 0 complaints.  

Website improvements will be implemented during 2011 to provide further information for 
local residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

21



Number of Complaining Households 

Month 2010 2009 2008 
January 2 13 25 
February 35 10 20 

March 7 12 13 
April 8 10 24 
May 18 15 32 
June 26 18 30 
July 20 31 26 

August 17 32 26 
September 17 19 18 

October 3 18 6 
November 5 5 6 
December 3 3 8 

Total 161 186 234 
 

We have seen a 13.5% reduction in the amount of complaining households. 

22



September - December 2010

Area

No. of 
Individual 
Households Noise Low Flying Routing Out of Hours Non-SIAL Others Police Military Total

Southampton 10 5 1 3 5 14
Bitterne Park 4 3 1 2 6
Winchester 3 1 1 1 3
West End 1 1 1 2
Eastleigh 2 2 2 4
Dibden Purlieu 2 2 2
Bishops Waltham 1 1 1
Hedge End 1 1 1
Shawford 1 1 1
Fair Oak 1 1 1
Romsey 1 1 1
Twyford 1 1 1

28 12 5 9 3 2 0 6 0 37

23



September - December 2009 

Complaints by Source

Area September October November December Total
Southampton 14 0 0 2 16
Bitterne Park 2 1 1 0 4
Winchester 1 0 1 1 3
West End 1 0 1 0 2
Eastleigh 4 0 0 0 4
Dibden Purlieu 1 0 1 0 2
Bishops Waltham 1 0 0 0 1
Hedge End 0 1 0 0 1
Shawford 0 1 0 0 1
Fair Oak 1 0 0 0 1
Romsey 0 0 1 0 1
Twyford 1 0 0 0 1
Total 26 3 5 3 37

24



September - December 2010

Summary of Complaint Category

September October November December Total
Noise 10 1 1 0 12
Low Flying 1 1 1 2 5
Routing 7 0 2 0 9
Out of Hours 1 0 1 1 3
Non Southampton Airport 1 1 0 0 2
Other 0 0 0 0 0
Police 6 0 0 0 6
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 26 3 5 3 37

Complaints not related to 
Southampton Airport 7 1 0 0 8

Noise 12
Low Flying 5
Routing 9
Out of Hours 3
Non Southampton Airport 2
Other 0
Police 6
Military 0

Out of Hours Flights are flights between 23:00 - 06:00

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

1 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday 10 February 2011 

 
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT – 

MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 

Report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy,  
Eastleigh Borough Council 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that this summary of airport operational activity for the 
September to December period of 2010 be noted.  
 

___________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY  
 
This report summarises the statistics of operational activity at Southampton 
Airport for the September to December period of 2010 provided by BAA 
Southampton in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement between the 
owners of the airport and the Borough Council. It compares the figures with 
those for the previous year and includes an overview of operational activity for 
the year as a whole. 
 

____________________________________________ 
 

 
Aircraft Movements: September to December 2010  

 

1. The monitoring statistics for this period are set out in the attached 
Appendix prepared by BAA Southampton. The total number of aircraft 
movements during this four-month period was 14,502. This was 254 
fewer than the total over the same period in 2009, a 1.7% decrease. An 
increase in the total number of movements in September and October by 
comparison with 2009 was followed by fewer movements in November 
and December. The adverse weather conditions in December 
undoubtedly contributed significantly to this reduction in the number of 
movements by comparison with 2009. 

2. The movements figure for this period in 2009, 14,756, had been 8.25% 
down on the figure recorded in 2008.  

3. There were just 5 training movements during this four-month period, 2 
fewer than the number recorded in the same period in 2009. 

Agenda Item 4

27



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

2 

4. Helicopter movements totalled 69 during this period, 21 more than the 
number recorded in the same period last year but well below the number 
routinely recorded in previous years. 

5. The total number of aircraft movements during 2010, 45,366 was 0.3% 
down on the 45,505 recorded in 2009. This stabilisation in the amount of 
operational activity at the airport follows several years in which the total 
number of movements has fallen. The total number of aircraft 
movements reached almost 64,000 in 2004. It has fallen steadily since, 
initially as a consequence of the almost total cessation of aircraft training 
activity at the airport and the use of aircraft with greater passenger 
capacity and, more recently, the economic recession. 

6. An increase in the number of movements in the summer of 2010 has 
been followed by the reduction in the last couple of months. 

 Movements During Night Hours: September to December 2010 

7. There were 15 aircraft movements during night hours over this four-
month period, 2 of which were exempt from the restrictions in the Flying 
Controls Agreement and 9 of which took place on various dates in 
December. The Agreement allows for up to 10 night movements in any 
calendar month, in addition to ‘exempt’ movements attributable to 
weather conditions or defined emergencies directly affecting that 
movement. The total number of night movements was therefore, overall, 
within the permitted limit, even before any exempt movements are taken 
into account. 

8. Despite the adverse weather conditions throughout December which 
affected the airline industry across the whole country, BAA minimised 
any adverse impact on local residents by continuing to operate within the 
constraints of the Flying Controls Agreement. As is usually the case, the 
majority of the night movements (12 of the 15) took place within 30 
minutes of the formal airport closure time of 11.00pm.  

 Conclusions 

9. Monitoring continues to show airport operational activity to be well within 
the terms of the Flying Controls Agreement. The modest increase in 
operational activity seen in the summer of 2010 was not maintained 
towards the end of the year, although the adverse weather conditions 
undoubtedly had a significant impact on the total number of aircraft 
movements.  

 
PAUL RAMSHAW 

Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy 
 
 
Contact:  Tony Wright 
Tel:  023 8068 8245 

28



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

3 

Email:  tony.wright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Date:  27 January 2011 
 
Appendices attached: One 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



EBC Flying Control Statistics
September - December 2010

Total Aircraft Movements
Total Movements Day Movements Night Movements

Aircraft Type Sep Oct Nov Dec Sep Oct Nov Dec Sep Oct Nov

Non CH3 Jet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training Movements 0 2 1 2 0 2 1 2 0 0 0

Helicopter 32 24 9 4 32 24 9 4 0 0 0

Fourth Schedule 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other aircraft 4400 4033 3340 2655 4400 4030 3337 2646 0 3 3

Totals 4432 4059 3350 2661 4432 4056 3347 2652 0 3 3

Total Night Movements - Summary
Month Exempt Month Total Cum Total

Total Movements Non Exempt Non Exempt

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Night Exemptions
Date Time A/D Type

17/11/2010 2312 A GFLBE     DH4 Weather delay en route

06/12/2010 2322 A GFBEN     E95 Weather delay en route

Night Movements
Date Time A/D Type

03/10/2010 2310 A GFBED     E95 Schedule delay

07/10/2010 2303 A GFBEJ     E95 Schedule delay

11/10/2010 2302 A GFBED     E95 Schedule delay

16/11/2010 2302 A GECOM     DH4 Technical delay

29/11/2010 0006 A GFBEI     E95 Schedule delay

03/12/2010 2307 A GJECG     DH4 Weather delay  

03/12/2010 2319 A GJECO     DH4 Weather delay

03/12/2010 2351 D GECOK     DH4 Weather delay

03/12/2010 2356 D GJECG     DH4 Weather delay

15/12/2010 2312 D GMPCD     320 Delayed charter

19/12/2010 2304 A GJEDW     DH4 Technical delay

21/12/2010 2323 A GFBED     E95 Weather delay

31/12/2010 2309 A GFBEN     E95 Weather delay

Reason

when it is 2300 - 0730Hrs (Local time).

Reg Reason

Night is defined as 2300 - 0600Hrs (Local time), except on Saturday pm to Sunday am

Reg

0

3

3

9

0

0

1

1

0

3

5

13

3

0

2

8

s

Dec

0

0

0

0

9

9

0

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



Chair of Southampton Airport Consultative Committee  
 

Background information and role profile  
 

 
Background 

Southampton Airport currently welcomes around 2 million passengers per 
year, and serves a growing route network of around 50 destinations in 
mainland Europe, the UK and Channel Islands. 

The airport is a major economic driver in the region, with 1200 people working 
on site, and is the largest employer in Eastleigh. The economic impact of the 
airport is over £100 million per year. 

The airport’s aim is to grow sustainably, balancing the economic and social 
benefits it brings to the region with its environmental and community 
responsibilities. 

Southampton Airport prides itself on consulting widely with its neighbours, 
business partners and local authorities on its current and future plans.  Since 
1969, the Southampton Airport Consultative Committee has become a well 
respected, independent Committee representing stakeholders’ interests. 

The overarching objective of the Consultative Committee is to ensure the 
future success of Southampton Airport whilst paying particular regard to the 
impact this has on the surrounding communities. In ensuring that stakeholder 
views are given an effective public forum, the Chair has a pivotal role in 
enabling the local community to influence Southampton Airport’s operations. 

The Consultative Committee is a non political forum. 

Department for Transport guidelines state that the purpose of Airport 
Consultative Committees are: 
 

• To enable aerodrome operators, communities in the vicinity of the 
aerodrome, local authorities, local business representatives, 
aerodrome users and other interested parties to exchange 
information and ideas 

• To allow the concerns of interested parties to be raised and taken 
into account by the aerodrome operators, with a genuine desire on 
all sides to resolve any issues that may emerge 

• To complement the legal framework within which the aerodrome 
operates 

•  
However, consultation is not intended: 

• To detract from or constrain the responsibility of the aerodrome 
owner and/or operator to manage the aerodrome 

• Nor to prevent interested parties from raising concerns directly with 
the aerodrome, or through other channels. 

 

Agenda Item 5

33



The terms of reference of Southampton Airport Consultative Committee 
are sufficiently widely drawn to allow it to consider all matters arising from 
the operation of the aerodrome, and membership is detailed in the 
Committee’s Constitution. The key aims are:  
 

• To foster communication and build understanding between the airport 
and its users, local residents and the business community 

• To consider and comment upon the impacts of the airport’s 
administration, operation and development in relation to: 
- The environment 
- Surface access issues associated with the airport 
- Employment 
- The local, regional and national economy 
 

• To consider any matter referred to the Committee by Southampton 
Airport or any member of the Committee with the prior consent of the 
Chair. 

• To consider and, if appropriate, comment upon any factual and 
consultative reports, from Governmental and other sources, that are 
material to the future character, operation and development of the 
airport 

 
The Role of the Chair 

The current Consultative Committee Chair, Tony Balcombe, will retire from 
the post in the summer of 2011. His successor will be appointed to take over 
from June. The new Chair will be appointed for a minimum period of three 
years.  

The Chair works closely with the Secretariat, which is supported by Eastleigh 
Borough Council and based at the civic offices in Eastleigh. He/she should not 
be closely identified with any sectional interest in order to maintain the 
confidence of the Committee members and stakeholders. The role requires an 
average one day per month, attending meetings or keeping abreast of 
aviation issues and policy development.  
 
There are three main Consultative Committee meetings a year to chair. The 
Committee has appointed representatives from a wide range of interests 
including local authorities, civil aviation, passenger, business and community 
groups, together with Southampton Airport’s Managing Director and 
representatives of his senior management team.  The Chair would be 
expected to attend a pre-meeting with the Hon Secretary and Airport MD to 
agree details.  

The Chair also attends the Technical Working Group, which is held three 
times per year. This sub-Committee enables a smaller group of members and 
aviation experts (including NAT, airlines and the airport) and to discuss 
important technical airport issues in detail, whereas the main Consultative 
Committee meetings discuss issues at a more strategic level.  

34



The Chair would also be expected to attend the annual Southampton Airport 
Stakeholder Conference, which is a half day event.  

The Chair’s role is: 

• To provide a structured forum for discussion so as to make 
recommendations to Southampton Airport management and other 
bodies when appropriate.  

 
• To encourage a common understanding between interested groups 

about the nature of Southampton Airport’s operation, thereby 
increasing the scope for issues to be resolved amicably. However, 
people interested in and affected by Southampton Airport’s 
operation may have mutually inconsistent viewpoints and it is not 
realistic to expect that all matters of concern will be able to be 
resolved through discussion. 

 
• To ensure the Committee is well informed of the issues under 

consideration 
 

 
• To promote understanding by Southampton Airport of the nature of 

its impacts on local communities and businesses 
 

• To ensure that members are given adequate opportunity to 
represent their views and that no organisation or one group should 
dominate proceedings 

 
• To pursue issues with Southampton Airport and the Honorary 

Secretary on behalf of the Committee in between formal meetings, 
including approving agenda items, and reviewing the Constitution 
from time to time. 

 
It is expected that matters should be resolved by consensus. In general, 
the Chair should avoid taking votes on matters other than those relating to 
the membership of the Committee and its sub-groups. 
 
The Chair is expected to represent the Committee at the Annual Meeting of 
Airport Consultative Committee Chairmen and Secretaries. This is a two-day 
event that is held at a different airport every year. 

The appointment of the Chair is made by Southampton Airport after 
consultation with Committee members. The post is subject to a small 
honorarium plus expenses. 

 

Skills required by the Chair: 

Experience of chairing large meetings. 

35



• Ability to reach consensus in an environment of differing views. 

• Ability to listen, summarise and act in an objective way. 

• A good verbal communicator   

• Background knowledge of the aviation industry is beneficial but not 
essential. 

 

Drafted on 26th January 2010 

 

36



Southampton Airport Consultative Committee Chair 
Recruitment Process 

 
 
 
Date Actions 
February 10th 2011 Agenda item on the Consultative 

Committee meeting to agree 
recruitment process and job 
profile. Also identification of 
Consultative Committee member 
to help in the shortlisting and 
recruitment process, in addition to 
the Vice Chair, Honorary Sec and 
Airport MD.  
 

14 Feb – 28th February Advertising and press release 
coverage. 
 

11th March Application deadline. 
 

18th March Short listing deadline. 
 

25th March Interview letter/rejection letter 
deadline. 
 

w/c 11th April First interview. 
 

w/c 25th April Second interview and offer. 
 

9th June  Introduce new Chair at the 
Consultative Committee, and 
current Chair retires. 
 

10th June Press release about change of 
Chair with photo. 
 

 
 
 
Shortlisting: 
The current Consultative Committee Vice Chair, Southampton Airport 
MD, the Honorary Secretary, and additional member of the 
Consultative Committee will work together to short list candidates.  
 
First interview: 

37



The first interview panel will include: the Vice Chairman, Southampton 
Airport MD, and one additional member of the Committee. 
 
Second interview: 
The second interview will comprise the Vice Chair and  Southampton 
Airport MD who will agree the appointment. 
 
Offer: 
The offer of the post will be subject to Southampton Airport successfully 
obtaining the relevant references.  

38



Page 1 of 4 

 
Technical Working Group 

 
Minutes 

 
Date Meeting held:  12th January 2011 
 
Present:   
Rob Crighton  - Southampton City Council  (RC) 
David Ingram  - Winchester City Council  (DI) 
Andy Kenyon  - NATS    (AK) 
Beverley Pavey - NATS    (BP) 
Martin Lowe  - Southampton City Council  (ML) 
Tony Wright  - Eastleigh Borough Council  (TW) 
Neil Scott  - Eastleigh Borough Council  (NS)  
Mark Gibb  - BAA     (MG)      
Jan Halliday  - BAA      (JH) Chair 
Mike Glen  - BAA     (MJG) 
Robert Heath  - Flybe     (RH) 
Paul Geering  - Flybe     (PG) 
Dave Lees  - BAA      (DL) 
 
Apologies: 
 
Tony Balcombe - Consultative Committee Chair (TB) 
Dave Lees  - BAA     (DL) 
 
Description Action 
     
1. Welcome & Apologies 
Jan Halliday opened the meeting and apologies were read.   
 

 

2. Review of Previous Minutes 
 
Pam Adams was due to be at this meeting but is not far enough through the 
design and planning process of satellite based approaches for Southampton. Pam 
is to be invited to the next TWG. 
Andy Kenyon and Mark Gibb hope to meet Pam before the next meeting to 
discuss the requirements. 
 
Changes to the joining point to the North – 
WAG (Winchester Air Group) are campaigning for a revised joining point for 
aircraft arriving from the North. It was decided at the last TWG that MG and AK 
were to formulate a letter to WAG explaining the potential risks and issues in 
implementing their suggested changes. The information has been now been 
collated. It was agreed that it would be better to meet Robin Tice of WAG face to 
face due to the technical nature of the issues. It is desirable to complete the letter 
and meeting by the end of January. 
David Ingram offered to be involved and suggested that this meeting is held in the 
Winchester Council Offices. 
 
New houses and planning applications – 
MG has spoken to the BAA central safeguarding team at Heathrow to clarify the 
safeguarding of new buildings including houses. Consideration is given to the 

 
 
 
 
 

 
MG / AK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AK / MG / DI 

Agenda Item 6

39



Page 2 of 4 

reflection of radar, bird management and the height of buildings. Noise is not 
considered as part of the standard safeguarding process. 
 
There are no council planning directives in force to stop a development within a 
noisy area. However, noise is taken into consideration when specifying the 
soundproofing required for new buildings and the Environmental Health Dept. are 
consulted prior to planning approval. 
 
It was also noted that when the NPR (Noise Preferred Routing) to the South was 
developed, (aircraft to climb to 500ft then turn to 217 degrees to follow the path of 
the river) the population along Southampton water was less dense. With the recent 
attraction of waterside properties, this area is now more densely populated. 
 

3. Noise Action Plan Update 
 
BAA received positive feedback on the Noise Action Plan following a meeting with 
the DfT and DEFRA in August 2010. 
 
A few changes were required and the Noise Action Plan was re-submitted. At this 
point in time there are no updates. 
 
Due to Stewart Smith relocating to Heathrow, all enquiries related to the Noise 
Action Plan should be forwarded to Mike Glen (Michael_glen@baa.com)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALL 

4. Airspace / Project Update 
 

• Multi-Lat 
It was acknowledged by all that this project is taking a lot longer than first 
anticipated. Site connectivity issues remain at the mast site in Twyford. Due to 
these issues, the system will go live this summer with a reduced number of masts 
until a viable solution can be found. 
 

• Localizer Replacement 
Due to the age of the current localizer, the current system does not meet the 
“European Signal in Space,” requirements. The replacement is due to take place 
in June/July 2011. 
 

• ILS Upgrade Runway 20 
The ILS on runway 20 is due to be categorised to CAT 1. The upgrade will mean a 
lower decision height for arriving aircraft. A decision height can be defined as the 
height or altitude at which an aircraft must have visual contact with a set object, 
during an instrument landing. If the object is not visible at this height, a go around 
must be initiated. The new ILS category will mean improved operations during low 
visibility by taking 100ft off of the current decision height. 
As part of this project, the airport will see improved AGL (Aerodrome Ground 
Lighting) to further improve ground operations also in low visibility. 
 

 

5. Noise Statistics Review 
 

There was one incident of Vortex damage in Townhill Park in November. A site visit 
was arranged and all repairs were carried out to the householder’s satisfaction. 
 
A total of 8 complaints (21%) were unrelated to Southampton Airport. These include 
Military flights and Police movements. 

 

 

 

 

40



Page 3 of 4 

 
Two Email based noise initiatives went live in October. An Email “Advisory Group,” 
which consists of addresses of people, who have in the past, commented on unusual 
routings/off track aircraft due to ILS outages etc. With a view to keeping the 
community informed, this will cut the number of complaints at root. An auto response 
message has also been set up on sou_community@baa.com to confirm to the 
complainant that the email has been received. 
 
The ILS was out of action on 4th November. An email was distributed utilising the 
“Advisory List,” and as a result, we recorded 0 complaints. Incidences of ILS outages 
have in the past attracted an average of 8 complaints. 
 
All complaints have been responded to on an average of 1.8 days. The SLA remains 
at 5 days. 
 
Percentage change on last year 
 

 2010 2009 % Change 

Sept 26 38 -32% 

Oct 3 25 -88% 

Nov 5 9 -44% 

Dec 3 6 -50% 

Total: 38 78 -51% 
 
 

End of Year Review 
 

Year Complaint Total 

2010 320 

2009 311 

2008 506 

2007 754 
 
 
We have seen an overall increase of 3.2% in the amount of complaints received during 2010. 
 
A total of 30 complaints originated from one complainant in Dibden Purlieu (9.3%). 
 
Due to an exceptionally warm summer, we saw an increase in complaints throughout the 
months of May and June. These 2 months alone are responsible for  46% of 2010 complaints. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. 2010/11 Work Plan 

Construction of ILS on 02 –  

Pam Adams was due to attend the Technical Working Group but sent her 
apologies. Pam is responsible for the policy and design for UK Instrument Flight 
Procedures for the CAA. Pam was due to inform the group about the work 
involved and the integration required. It was requested that Pam be invited to the 
next TWG in May. 

 

 

 

MG 

 

41



Page 4 of 4 

Airspace Changes Required For The Olympics – 

It was asked that Andy Kenyon prepare a presentation about the required changes 
to the airspace preceding the Olympics in 2012.  

The changes have been requested by the Government due to a higher demand for 
airspace and air travel. It is also anticipated that the amount of helicopter traffic will 
increase. Weymouth will be the only Olympic site in the UK that will have 
continuous competition throughout the games. 

The airspace changes will only be temporary and a simulation exercise of the 
proposed changes is being held in March at Swanwick. 

Noise Monitors -   

An order has been placed and confirmed for two portable noise monitors. A 
strategy will be developed in conjunction with the new Environment Manager and 
the units will be presented at the next meeting. 

 

 

AK 

 

 

 

 

 

MJG 

7. Any Other Business 
 
A question was raised concerning an update to the BAA master plan. JH 
commented that there are no government led requirements for BAA to update the 
master plan at present. The plan is subject to an ongoing review. 
 
AK informed the group that NATS have held meetings with the GA community 
concerning the routes taken by GA aircraft whilst in the Southampton airspace. 
The idea is to provide recommended routes for GA pilots to ensure consistency 
and predictability in their movements.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Date of Next Meeting:   Monday 9th May 2011, 11.00 - 12.30hrs 
Venue:   Conference Room 1, Terminal Building, Southampton Airport 

42


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 14 October 2010 of Airport Consultative Committee
	3 Airport Managing Director's Report
	EBC 106 Appendices Sep - Dec 2010 P5
	EBC 106 Appendices Sep - Dec 2010 P6
	Noise Statistics Review 2010
	4 month noise stats - Sept - Dec 2010

	4 Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement
	110210 Flying Controls statistics Sep - Dec 2010 P4

	5 Proposal for the Appointment of a new Chair of Southampton Airport Consultative Committee
	Chair Appointing Process - Southampton V2

	6 Technical Working Group feedback

